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FLORIDA DEPARTMENT 0f STATE

RON DESANTIS CORD BYRD
Governor Secretary of State

August 25, 2023

Bobby York

Program Rules Coordinator

Florida Department of Revenue

2450 Shumard Oak Blvd., Bldg. 2, Rm. 4464
Tallahassee, FL 32399-0100

Dear Bobby York:

Your adoption package for Rules 12E-1.012, .023, .027, .028, .029, .030, .036, .039, .040, .041, and .042,
F.A.C. was received, electronically, by the Florida Department of State, Administrative Code and Register
at 10:30 a.m. on August 25, 2023. After review, it appears that the package meets statutory requirements
and those of Rule 1-1.010, F.A.C. and is deemed filed for adoption at the time received, as indicated above.
The effective date is September 14, 2023.

Sincerely,

Anya C. Owens
Administrative Code and Register Director

ACO/al

R. A. Gray Building ¢ 500 South Bronough Street e Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0250
Telephone: (850) 245-6270



Leijon, Alexandra

From: Bobby York <Bobby.York@floridarevenue.com>

Sent: Friday, August 25, 2023 10:30 AM

To: RuleAdoptions

Cc: Janet Young; Bobby York

Subject: Department of Revenue Rules for Certification

Attachments: 12e_certpackage_08252023.pdf; 12E-1-Rule Text_08252023.docx

EMAIL RECEIVED FROM EXTERNAL SOURCE

The attachments/links in this message have been scanned by Proofpoint.

Good morning,

The following Department of Revenue Rules are presented for certification:

e 12E-1.012 Consumer Reporting Agencies

e 12E-1.023 Suspension of Driver License; Suspension of Motor Vehicle Registration
e 12E-1.027 Written Agreements for Payment of Past-Due Support

e 12E-1.028 Garnishment by Levy

e 12E-1.029 Financial Institution Data Matches

e 12E-1.030 Administrative Establishment of Child Support Obligations

e 12E-1.036 Administrative Establishment of Paternity and Support Obligations
e 12E-1.039 Request for Services

e 12E-1.040 Intergovernmental Forms

e 12E-1.041 Review for Modification of Support Order

e 12E-1.042 Income Withholding

Please see the attached PDF of the certification packet and a Word document with the coded rule text.

Thank you,

Bobby York

Program Rules Coordinator
CSP|Procedures, Rules and Forms
Florida Department of Revenue
(850) 617-8037
bobby.york@floridarevenue.com
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NOTIFICATION TO RECIPIENTS: The subject line of this email may indicate that this email has been sent unsecure. This is
a default setting which in no way indicates that this communication is unsafe, but rather that the email has been sent
unencrypted in clear text form. Revenue does provide secure email exchange. Please contact us if you need to exchange
confidential information electronically.

If you have received this email in error, please notify us immediately by return email. If you receive a Florida Department
1



of Revenue communication that contains personal or confidential information, and you are not the intended recipient,
you are prohibited from using the information in any way. All record of any such communication (electronic or
otherwise) should be destroyed in its entirety.

Cautions on corresponding with Revenue by email: Under Florida law, emails received by a state agency are public
records. Both the message and the email address it was sent from (excepting any information that is exempt from
disclosure under state law) may be released in response to a public records request.

Internet email is not secure and may be viewed by someone other than the person you send it to. Please do not include
your social security number, federal employer identification number, or other sensitive information in an email to us.



KATHLEEN PASSIDOMO
President

THE FLORIDA LEGISLATURE

JOINT ADMINISTRATIVE
PROCEDURES COMMITTEE

Senator Blaise Ingoglia, Chair

Representative Tobin Rogers “Toby” Overdorf, Vice Chair
Senator Colleen Burton

Senator Erin Grall

Senator Rosalind Osgood

Senator Darryl Ervin Rouson

Representative Shane G. Abbott

Representative Kimberly Berfield

Representative Jervonte “Tae” Edmonds

Representative Alina Garcia

PAUL RENNER
Speaker

KENNETH J. PLANTE
COORDINATOR

Room 680, Pepper Building

111 West Madison Street
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1400
Telephone (850) 488-9110

Fax (850) 922-6934
www.japc.state.fl.us
japc@leg.state.fl.us

Representative Yvonne Hayes Hinson

CERTIFICATION
Department: Department of Revenue
Agency: Division of Child Support Enforcement
Rule No(s): 12E-1.012, .023, .027, .028, .029, .030, .036, .039, .040, .041, .042

File Control No: 190210

As required by subparagraph 120.54(3)(e)4 F.S., the Joint Administrative Procedures Committee
hereby certifies that:

L] There were no material and timely written comments or written inquiries made on
behalf of the committee regarding the above listed rule; or

The adopting agency has responded in writing to all material and timely written

comments or written inquiries made on behalf of the committee regarding the above
listed rules; or

[] The adopting agency has not responded in writing to all material and timely written

comments or written inquiries made on behalf of the Committee regarding the above
listed rules.

Certification Date: 8/25/2023
This certification expires after: 8/28/2023
Certifying Attorney: Jamie Jackson

NOTE:
The above certified rules include materials incorporated by reference.

[] The above certified rules do not include materials incorporated by reference.

Form Updated 12/9/2021



Florida Department of Revenue Jim Zingale
Office of the Executive Director Executive Director

PARTMENT OF REVENUE

FLORIDA

5050 West Tennessee Street, Tallahassee, FL 32399 floridarevenue.com

August 25, 2023

Ms. Anya C. Owens, Chief

Florida Department of State

R.A. Gray Building, Mail Station 22
500 S. Bronough Street
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0250

Re: Certification of Department of Revenue Rules
Dear Ms. Owens:
The following Department of Revenue Rules are presented for certification:
12E-1.012 12E-1.023 12E-1.027 12E-1.028 12E-1.029 12E-1.030
12E-1.036 12E-1.039 12E-1.040 12E-1.041 12E-1.042
The following persons may be contacted regarding these rule certifications:
Bobby York 850-617-8037 Bobby.York@floridarevenue.com
Florida Department of Revenue
Building Two, Room 4464

2450 Shumard Oak Blvd.
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0100

Sincerely,

50//% %/"g /for

Janet Young
Agency Rules Coordinator




CERTIFICATION OF DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE

ADMINISTRATIVE RULES FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE

I hereby certify:

[XX] (1) That all statutory rulemaking requirements of chapter 120, F.S., and all rulemaking requirements of the
Department of State have been complied with; and

[XX] (2) That there is no administrative determination under section 120.56(2), F.S., pending on any rule covered by
this certification; and

[XX] (3) All rules covered by this certification are filed within the prescribed time limitations of section 120.54(3)(e),
F.S. They are filed not less than 28 days after the notice required by section 120.54(3)(a), F.S.; and

[XX] (a) Are filed not more than 90 days after the notice; or

[ 1(b) Are filed more than 90 days after the notice, but not more than 60 days after the administrative law judge files the
final order with the clerk or until 60 days after subsequent judicial review is complete; or

[ ] (c) Are filed more than 90 days after the notice, but not less than 21 days nor more than 45 days from the date of
publication of the notice of change; or

[ 1(d) Are filed more than 90 days after the notice, but not less than 14 nor more than 45 days after the adjournment of
the final public hearing on the rule; or

[ 1 (e) Are filed more than 90 days after the notice, but within 21 days after the date of receipt of all material authorized
to be submitted at the hearing; or

[ 1(f) Are filed more than 90 days after the notice, but within 21 days after the date the transcript was received by this
agency; or

[ 1(g) Are filed not more than 90 days after the notice, not including days the adoption of the rule was postponed
following notification from the Joint Administrative Procedures Committee that an objection to the rule was
being considered; or

[ 1 (h) Are filed more than 90 days after the notice, but within 21 days after a good faith written proposal for a lower
cost regulatory alternative to a proposed rule is submitted which substantially accomplishes the objectives of the
law being implemented; or

[ 1(@) Are filed more than 90 days after the notice, but within 21 days after a regulatory alternative is offered by the

ombudsman in the Executive Office of the Governor.



The rules are hereby adopted by the undersigned agency by and upon their filing with the Department of State.

Rule No(s).
12E-1.012 12E-1.023 12E-1.027 12E-1.028 12E-1.029 12E-1.030
12E-1.036 12E-1.039 12E-1.040 12E-1.041 12E-1.042

Under the provision of section 120.54(3)(e)6., F.S., the rules take effect 20 days from the date filed with the Department
of State or a later date as set out below:

Effective Date:

(month) (day) (year)

Signature, Person Authorized tﬁ:enify Rules

Deputy Executive Director

Title

26
Number of Pages Certified




CERTIFICATION OF DEPARTMENT OF STATE
DESIGNATION OF RULE THE VIOLATION OF WHICH IS A MINOR VIOLATION

Pursuant to Section 120.695(2)(c)3, Florida Statutes, I certify as agency head, as defined by section 20.05(1)(b),
Florida Statutes, that:

[X] All rules covered by this certification are not rules the violation of which would be minor violation pursuant to
Section 120.695, F.S.

[ ] The following parts of the rules covered by this certification have been designated as rules the violation of which
would be a minor violation pursuant to Section 120.695, F.S.

None
Rules covered by this certification:

Rule 12E-1.012, F.A.C.
Rule 12E-1.023, F.A.C.
Rule 12E-1.027, F.A.C.
Rule 12E-1.028, F.A.C.
Rule 12E-1.029, F.A.C.
Rule 12E-1.030, F.A.C.
Rule 12E-1.036, F.A.C.
Rule 12E-1.039, F.A.C.
Rule 12E-1.040, F.A.C.
Rule 12E-1.041, F.A.C.
Rule 12E-1.042, F.A.C.

Form: DS-FCR-6
Rule 1-1.010(3)(f), F.A.C.; effective 10-17



STATE OF FLORIDA
DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
CHAPTER 12E-1, FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE
CHILD SUPPORT PROGRAM
AMENDING RULES 12E-1.012, 12E-1.023, 12E-1.027, 12E-1.028, 12E-1.029, 12E-1.030,
12E-1.036, 12E-1.039, AND 12E-1.040

CREATING RULES 12E-1.041 AND 12E-1.042

SUMMARY OF PROPOSED RULES

The proposed amendments to Rule 12E-1.012, F.A.C. (Consumer Reporting Agencies),
adopt the updated Notice of Intent to Report to Consumer Reporting Agencies (CS-EF32).

The proposed amendments to Rule 12E-1.023, F.A.C. (Suspension of Driver License;
Suspension of Motor Vehicle Registration), adopt the updated Notice of Intent to Suspend Driver
License and Motor Vehicle Registration(s) (CS-EF55).

The proposed amendments to Rule 12E-1.027, F.A.C. (Written Agreements for Payment of
Past-Due Support), adopt the updated Payment Agreement for Past-Due Support (CS-EF91).

The proposed amendments to Rule 12E-1.028, F.A.C. (Garnishment by Levy), adopt the
updated Thrift Savings Plan Income Withholding Order For State Agencies, 12/2022 (TSP-CS-
1).

The proposed amendments to Rule 12E-1.029, F.A.C. (Financial Institution Data Matches),
adopt the updated Multistate Financial Institution Data Match Specifications Handbook, Version
3.0, December 30, 2020, adopt a new Agreement for Financial Institution Data Matching (CS-
EF134), and remove provisions for the payment of fees for data match services to financial

institutions doing business in Florida that are provided in the Agreement for Financial Institution



Data Matching (CS-EF134).

The proposed amendments to Rule 12E-1.030, F.A.C. (Administrative Establishment of
Child Support Obligations), delete statements that are included as revised in proposed Rule 12E-
1.041, Review for Modification of Support Order and adopt changes to forms used to establish
administrative support orders.

The proposed amendments to Rule 12E-1.036, F.A.C. (Administrative Establishment of
Paternity and Support Obligations), adopt changes to forms used to establish administrative
paternity and support orders.

The proposed amendments to Rule 12E-1.039, F.A.C. (Request for Services), adopt updates
to forms used when an individual applies for services.

The proposed amendments to Rule 12E-1.040, F.A.C. (Intergovernmental Forms), adopt
forms used in intergovernmental cases involving child support programs in other states, foreign
countries, and tribes, as required by 45 CFR 303.7(a)(4).

The proposed Rule 12E-1.041, F.A.C. (Review for Modification of Support Order), creates a
new rule for reviewing support orders for modification and adopts forms.

The proposed Rule 12E-1.042, F.A.C. (Income Withholding), adopts the notice used for

income withholding.

FACTS AND CIRCUMSTANCES JUSTIFYING PROPOSED RULES

The proposed amendments to Rules 12E-1.012, 12E-1.023, 12E-1.027, 12E-1.028, 12E-
1.029, 12E-1.030, 12E-1.036, 12E-1.039, and 12E-1.040 F.A.C., are necessary to update the
Department’s procedures for credit reporting, driver license suspension, written agreements,

bank levies, financial institutions, establishment of administrative support orders for paternity



and child support, applications for services, and cases involving other states and foreign
countries.
Proposed Rules 12E-1.041 and 12E-1.042 F.A.C., are necessary to adopt procedures and

forms to review and modify support orders and conduct income withholding.

FEDERAL COMPARISON STATEMENT

The provisions contained in these rules do not conflict with comparable federal laws,

policies, or standards.

SUMMARY OF RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP

APRIL 13,2023

A Notice of Proposed Rule Development was published in the Florida Administrative
Register on March 30, 2023 (Vol. 49, No. 62) to advise the public of the proposed changes to
Rules 12E-1.012, 12E-1.023, 12E-1.027, 12E-1.028, 12E-1.029, 12E-1.030, 12E-1.036, 12E-
1.039, and 12E-1.040 F.A.C., and the creation of new Proposed Rules 12E-1.041 and 12E-1.042,
F.A.C., and to provide that, if requested in writing, and not deemed unnecessary by the agency
head, a rule development workshop would be held Thursday, April 13, 2023. No request has been
received, and no workshop has been held. No written comments have been received by the
Department.

Although the purpose and effect and the summary of proposed new Rules 12E-1.041 and
12E-1.042, F.A.C., were included in the Notice of Proposed Rule Development published in the
Florida Administrative Register (Vol. 49, No. 62), the rule number and rule title of the rules were

erroneously omitted from the index of rules at the beginning of the notice. To create new rules in



the Florida Administrative Code when a new rule is certified and adopted, newly created rule
numbers and titles must be listed in the index of a Notice of Rule Development. To correct this
error and provide for the creation of new Rules 12E-1.041 and 12E-1.042, a Notice of Proposed
Rule Development was published in the Florida Administrative Register on May 26, 2023 (Vol.

49, No. 103).

SUMMARY OF PUBLIC MEETING

MAY 23,2023

The Governor and Cabinet, sitting as head of the Department of Revenue, met on May 23,
2023, and approved the publication of the Notice of Proposed Rule for changes to Rules 12E-
1.012, 12E-1.023, 12E-1.027, 12E-1.028, 12E-1.029, 12E-1.030, 12E-1.036, 12E-1.039, and
12E-1.040 F.A.C., and the creation of new Proposed Rules 12E-1.041 and 12E-1.042 F.A.C., as
well as approval to file and certify with the Secretary of State adoption pursuant to s.
120.54(3)(e)1., F.S., if the substance of these rules remain unchanged upon reaching the date
applicable to filing for final adoption pursuant to s. 120.54(3)(e)2., F.S. A notice of the public
meeting was published in the Florida Administrative Register on May 12, 2023 (Vol. 49, No.
93))

SUMMARY OF RULE HEARING

A Notice of Proposed Rule was published in the Florida Administrative Register on May 30,
2023 (Vol. 49, No. 104, PP. 2029-2038), to advise the public of the proposed changes to Rules
12E-1.012, 12E-1.023, 12E-1.027, 12E-1.028, 12E-1.029, 12E-1.030, 12E-1.036, 12E-1.039,
and 12E-1.040 F.A.C., and the creation of new Proposed Rules 12E-1.041 and 12E-1.042, F.A.C.

The notice also provided that, if requested in writing, a public hearing would be held. No request



to hold a rule hearing was received. Comments were received from the Joint Administrative
Procedures Committee. A Notice of Change for Rules 12E-1.029, 12E-1.030, 12E-1.036, 12E-
1.040, and 12E-1.041, F.A.C., was published in the Florida Administrative Register on July 12,
2023 (Vol. 49, No. 134, PP. 2505-2507), in response to the comments received. A Notice of
Change for Rule 12E-1.029, F.A.C., was published in the Florida Administrative Register on
August 2, 2023 (Vol. 49, No. 149, PP. 2825-2826) in response to the comments. No substantive

changes were made to the proposed rules after the Cabinet meeting on May 23, 2023.



STATE OF FLORIDA
DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE

CHAPTER 12E-1, FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE
CHILD SUPPORT PROGRAM

AMENDING RULES 12E-1.012, 12E-1.023, 12E-1.027, 12E-1.028, 12E-1.029, 12E-1.030, 12E-1.036,
12E-1.039, AND 12E-1.040

CREATING RULES 12E-1.041 AND 12E-1.042

12E-1.012 Consumer Reporting Agencies.

(1) through (3) No change.

(4) Notice and Right to Hearing.

(a) Before releasing a report or providing information concerning an obligor under this
section, the Department sends the obligor by regular mail to his or her last known address a
Notice of Intent to Report to Consumer Reporting Agencies, Form CS-EF32, incorporated herein
by reference, effective 09/23 8722, (http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-
15850 +4346). The notice informs the obligor that:

1. through 6. No change.

(b) No change.

(5) through (6) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 61.1354(5), 409.2557(3)(i) FS. Law Implemented 61.1354 F'S. History—
New 6-17-92, Amended 7-20-94, Formerly 10C-25.009, Amended 10-22-00, 10-30-06, 9-19-17,

11-12-20, 11-21-21, 6-9-22, 10-26-22

12E-1.023 Suspension of Driver License; Suspension of Motor Vehicle Registration.



(1) through (3) No change.

(4) Notice to Obligor of Intent to Suspend Driver License; Notice to Suspend Motor Vehicle
Registration.

(a) In accordance with Section 61.13016(1), F.S., the Department sends shal-send to the
obligor by regular mail a Notice of Intent to Suspend Driver License and Motor Vehicle
Registration(s), Form CS-EF55, incorporated herein by reference, effective 09/23 6722,
(http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-15851 4434%).; Notice is shall-be mailed
to the obligor’s address of record with the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles.

(b) through (c).

(5) through (8) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 409.2557(3)(i) FS. Law Implemented 61.13016, 322.058 FS. History—New

7-20-94, Formerly 10C-25.020, Amended 3-6-02, 9-19-17, 3-25-20, 11-12-20, 11-21-21, 6-9-22,

12E-1.027 Written Agreements for Payment of Past-Due Support.

(1) through (3) No change.

(4) Form and Completion of Written Agreements.

(a) The Department uses the Payment Agreement for Past-Due Support (CS-EF91) form to
enter into a written agreement with an obligor. Form CS-EF91,
(http://www flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-15852 +4809), is incorporated herein by
reference effective 09/23 H/22.

(b) A written agreement becomes effective when completed and signed by both the

Department and the obligor, or the obligor’s representative. After execution of a written



agreement, the Department provides the obligor, or the obligor’s representative a copy of the
agreement.
Rulemaking Authority 409.2557(3)(f), 409.2564(13) FS. Law Implemented 409.2561(1), (2)(b),

(3), 409.2564(4), 409.2598 FS. History—New 3-6-02, Amended 10-26-22, :

12E-1.028 Garnishment by Levy.

(1) through (3) No change

(4) Notice to Freeze.

(a) After considering the factors and conditions in subsection (3), the Department sends a
Notice to Freeze (CS-EF121) to the custodian of the obligor’s personal property by certified
mail, return receipt requested. The Notice to Freeze (CS-EF121) is incorporated herein by
reference, effective 04/20, (http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-11824). If the
account is a Thrift Savings Plan, the Department sends the custodian a Thrift Savings Plan
Income Withholding Order For State Agencies (TSP-CS-1) and Thrift Savings Plan Cover Sheet
(CS-EF287). The Thrift Savings Plan Income Withholding Order For State Agencies (TSP-CS-1)
12/2022 862016 is incorporated herein by reference, effective 09/23 0420,

(http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-15853 H837). The Department will not

iInitiate a levy action against an obligor’s Thrift Savings Plan account or accounts unless the

combined account balance is equal to or greater than $1500.

(b) through (d) No change.
(5) through (14) No change.
Rulemaking Authority 409.2557(3)(i), 409.25656(11) FS. Law Implemented 409.25656 FS.

History—New 4-3-02, Amended 4-16-20, 11-12-20, 11-21-21, 6-9-22, .



12E-1.029 Financial Institution Data Matches.
(1) Procedures for Entering into Agreements With Financial Institutions.

(a) The Department sends shal-send an Agreement for Financial Institution Data Matching

(Form CS-EF134) (http://www.{flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-18854) aFinanectal

Institution Data Mateh Election E CS-EE133:
(httpwvwwflrules-org/GatewayfreferenceaspNoe—RefH779), incorporated herein by

reference, effective 09/23 83420, for the operation of the data match system described in Section
409.25657(2), F.S., to each financial institution doing business in Florida meeting the definition
of a financial institution in Section 409.25657(1)(a), F.S., that and-whieh has not elected to
participate in the Federal Office of Child Support Services Enforeement’s national data match
process specified in paragraph (c);-below.

(b) The financial institution’s electronic files containing data match records must shal be
prepared according to the specifications prescribed by the Federal Office of Child Support
Services Enfereement’s Multistate Financial Institution Data Match Specifications Handbook,

Version 3.0, December 30, 2020 20 Mareh 27,2017,

(http://www flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-15856 H780), incorporated herein by

reference, effective xx/xx 83/20. The Department will maintain the confidentiality of information

exchanged as required by section 409.2479(1), F.S., and 45 C.F.R. § 303.21 (10-1-21)

(http://www .flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-15855), incorporated herein by

reference, effective xx/xx. Members of the public may obtain copies of the Multistate Financial

Institution Data Match Specifications Handbook and 45 C.F.R. § 303.21. without cost, by

writing to the Florida Department of Revenue, Mail Stop 2-4464, 5050 West Tennessee Street,




Tallahassee, Florida 32399.

(c) No change.
(2) No change.

(3) Fees for Conducting Data Matches. If in a fully executed Agreement for Financial

Institution Data Matching (CS-EF134) a financial institution elects to receive fees for its

services, the Department will pay the applicable fees in the amounts specified, subject to the

terms and conditions as stated in the Aereement. Fees are authorized only for financial

institutions doing business in Florida. The-Departmentshall-pay-quarterlyfeesto-finanetal

Rulemaking Authority 409.2557(3)(i), 409.25657(6) FS. Law Implemented 409.25657 FS.



History—New 1-23-03, Amended 4-5-16, 3-25-20, .

12E-1.030 Administrative Establishment of Child Support Obligations.

(1) through (13) No change.

(14) Modifying an Administrative Support Order.

(a) The Department files shalftle a petition in circuit court for a superseding order when
support for an additional child of the same parents needs to be established or a child needs to be
removed from the order.

(b) A parent or caregiver may request orally or in writing that the Department review medify

an administrative support order in accordance with Rule 12E-1.041 byecompleting Form-CS-




(c)) The Department notifies shall-netify the parents or caregiver, as applicable, when it

begins a proceeding to modify an administrative support order issued by the Department the-sappert

blicationof eimistrative S eder.

1. The Department uses a Form-ES-OA120R; Proposed Order to Modify Administrative

Support Order (Form CS-OA120R), hereby incorporated by reference, effective 09/23 H+420,

(http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-15857 12346), to-medify-thesupport
obligation-ameunt when a support order review indicates a modification is appropriate. If the

party who does that-did not request the review responds to the Department during the suppert

order review, the Department sends the proposed order by regular mail to both parties at te their
addresses of record. If the non-requesting party does not participate in the support order review,
the Department attempts shal-attempt to serve the proposed order on the non-requesting party
by certified mail or personal service. If the party serviee is not served aceemplished by certified
mail or personal service, the Department sends shal-send the non-requesting party the proposed
order by regular mail to the non-requesting party’s address of record. If the proposed order is not
contested by either party within 30 days after ef service by certified mail or personal service, or
35 days after the notice Netiee is sent by regular mail, the Department prepares and renders a

EormCS-OA40OR; Final Modified Administrative Support Order (Form CS-OA140R), hereby




incorporated by reference, effective 09/23 16214,
(http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-15858 43853). Under Section
409.2563(13)(c), F.S., a party to an administrative proceeding has a continuing duty to provide
the Department with a current mailing address after being served with an initial notice under
paragraph (5)(b) of this rule, and the party is presumed to receive a subsequent notice, proposed
order or other document mailed to the party’s address of record including a proposed order to
modify support.

2. The Proposed Order to Modify Administrative Support Order includes shal-nelude the
same notices as specified in subsection (8) of this rule.

3. No change.

(15) Termination of an Administrative Support Order or Support Obligation.

(a) The Department issues a Notice of Intent to Terminate Support, Determine Arrears and
Establish Payment on Arrears (CS-OA160) when:

1. through 2. No change.

3. The child(ren) for whom support is ordered permanently resides with a person other than

the parent to whom support is owed or the parent who is ordered to pay support and that person

1s unknown, not responsive to the Department, or does not want the Department’s services.

3. through 5. Renumbered 4. through 6. No change.

(b) The Department sends the notice by regular mail to each parent or caregiver, as
applicable, at the address of record with the Department in accordance with Section
409.2563(13)(c), F.S. Form CS-OA160, Notice of Intent to Terminate Support, Determine
Arrears and Establish Payment on Arrears, is hereby incorporated by reference, effective 09/23

H22, (http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-15859 14810).



(c) If a timely petition for an administrative hearing is filed with the Department in response to the
notice, the Department refers the proceeding to the Division of Administrative Hearings in accordance
with Section 409.2563(6), F.S. If the notice is not contested, the Department renders a Final Order
Terminating Support, Determining Arrears and Establishing Payment on Arrears (CS-OA178).
Form CS-OA178 is hereby incorporated by reference, effective 09/23 1422,

(http://www flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-15860 +48H).

(d) through (e) No change.

(f) A parent or caregiver may request the Department to terminate an administrative support
order or support obligation. Requests must made be in writing and may be made using Request
to Terminate Support (CS-OA179). Form CS-OA179 is hereby incorporated by reference,
effective 09/23 HA22, (http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-15861 14812).
The request must include the following information:

1. Name of the parent or caregiver making the request;

2. Name of the other parent;

3. Child support case number or depository number;

4. Name of the child(ren) named in the order;

5. Specific reasons for the request to terminate; and,

6. Documentation that supports the request to terminate, if any.

(g) The Department evaluates requests to terminate an administrative support order or
support obligation and issues a Notice of Intent to Terminate Support, Determine Arrears and
Establish Payment on Arrears (CS-OA160) if the request and supporting documentation meet the
criteria in paragraph (a). If the request does not meet the criteria, the Department mails the parent

or caregiver the Response to Request to Terminate Support (CS-OA180). Form CS-OA180 is



hereby incorporated by reference, effective 09/23 H-22,
(http://www flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-15862 +4813).
(16) through (18) No change.
Rulemaking Authority 61.13(1)(b)7., 61.14(1)(d), 409.2557(3)(p), 409.2563(7)(e), 409.2563(16),
409.25633(9) FS. Law Implemented 409.2563, 409.25633 FS. History—New 9-19-17, Amended

1-17-18, 9-17-18, 8-28-19, 11-12-20, 11-21-21, 10-26-22, .

12E-1.036 Administrative Establishment of Paternity and Support Obligations.

(1) through (4) No change.

(5) Obtaining Cooperation from the Mother or Caregiver.

(a) If a case is eligible for establishment of an administrative paternity order, the Department
must obtain cooperation from the mother or caregiver before serving notice on the respondent.
To obtain cooperation, the Department mails Form CS-OP0S5, Requirement to Provide Sample
for Genetic Testing, hereby incorporated by reference, effective 09/23 6722,
(http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-15863 +4352), by regular mail to the
mother or caregiver. The CS-OP05 informs the mother or caregiver where and when to appear to
provide a sample for genetic testing, and it also informs the mother or caregiver to bring the
child(ren) named on the form to be tested.

(b) through (c) No change.

(6) No change.

(7) Notice of Proceeding to Establish Paternity and Order to Appear for Genetic Testing.

(a) Notice of Proceeding to Establish Paternity or Paternity and Administrative Support

Requirements. The Department serves wil-serve the alleged father with Form CS-OPO01, Notice
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of Administrative Proceeding to Establish Paternity, hereby incorporated by reference, effective
1/18, (http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-08994), hereafter referred to as the
Notice of Proceeding. The Department sends wilsend the alleged father Form CS-OP02, Order
to Appear for Genetic Testing, incorporated by reference, effective 09/23 0422,

(http://www flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-15864 13857), with the Notice of
Proceeding and a copy of the Paternity Declaration, CS-PO34, or an affidavit that names the
alleged father. The Notice of Proceeding will be served on the respondent by certified mail,
restricted delivery, return receipt requested, or by any other means of service that meet the
requirements for service of process in a civil action. Once served, the alleged father must notify
the Department in writing of any change of address. If the alleged father does not update the
Department, the Department will serve by regular mail any other document or resulting order to
the address of record and the alleged father is deemed to have received them.

(b) No change.

(8) through (11) No change.

(12) Proposed Order of Paternity. The Proposed Order of Paternity
(http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-15865 12363), CS-OP30, effective
09/23 H-226, and incorporated by reference, is sent to the alleged father by regular mail to the
address of record. The Proposed Order of Paternity informs him that the Department intends to
issue a final order establishing him as the legal father of the child or children named in the
Proposed Order of Paternity. The Proposed Order of Paternity informs the alleged father of his
right to an informal review and to an administrative hearing. The time frames, forms, and
procedures for the informal review and administrative hearing are the same as described in

paragraph (14)(g)H. A blank Title IV-D Standard Parenting Time Plan, CS-OA250, is included
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with the Proposed Order of Paternity, form CS-OP30 except as provided by paragraph (6)(a).

The Department will:

(a) through (c) No change.

(13) Proceeding to establish an Administrative Paternity and Support Order.

(a) No change.

(b) Alleged Father’s Rights; Proceeding in Circuit Court as an alternative to the
Administrative Process:

1. The alleged father may file a paternity action in circuit court and serve the Department
with a copy of the petition. The alleged father must have the petition served on the Deputy
Agency Clerk at the address specified in the notice within 20 days after the date the Notice of
Proceeding to Establish Administrative Support Order was mailed. If the Department is served
timely, it will end the administrative establishment process and proceed in circuit court. If the
alleged father files a petition in circuit court, but does not serve the Department in the 20-day
time frame, the Department will continue with the administrative establishment proceeding by
either issuing a Proposed Administrative Paternity and Support Order
(http://www flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-15866 +2366), CS-OA20, effective
09/23 HA86, and incorporated by reference, or referring the proceeding to the Division of
Administrative Hearings without issuing a Proposed Administrative Paternity and Support Order
if the Department determines that an evidentiary hearing is appropriate to determine the
respondent’s income. If the petition is served on the Department timely, the Department will
mail the petitioning parent or caregiver the Dismissal of Administrative Proceeding form, CS-
OASS.

2. No change.
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3.a- No change.

(14) Proposed Administrative Paternity and Support Order.

(a) Not sooner than 20 days after serving the Notice of Proceeding to Establish
Administrative Support Order form, CS-OA01, under subsection (13), the Department will shalt
calculate the respondent’s support obligation using the child support guidelines in Section 61.30,
F.S. If the respondent does not provide financial information within the time required by
Sections 409.2563(13)(a) and (b), F.S., the Department will shall impute income as provided
Section 61.30(2)(b) or 409.2563(5), F.S., as applicable.

(b)ta) Calculation of the respondent’s retroactive support obligation will shalt be in
accordance with Section 61.30(17), F.S. Retroactive support will shal be addressed in an initial
determination of child support.

(c)B) The Department will shalt prepare a Proposed Administrative Paternity and Support
Order (CS-OA20), which for purposes of the rule is entitled Proposed Administrative-Suppert
Order erder, that establishes the terms of the support obligation and includes, at a minimum, all
elements contained in Section 409.2563(7)(e), F.S. The Department will shall mail the Proposed
Order to the respondent by regular mail to the respondent’s address of record. The Proposed
Order will shall include a notice of rights that informs the respondent of the right to an informal
discussion with the Department, the right to a formal administrative hearing, and the right to
consent to the entry of an Administrative Paternity and Support Order. Copies of the child
support guidelines worksheet prepared by the Department and the financial affidavit submitted
by the other parent are mailed with the Proposed Order. The Department will shall provide a
copy of the Proposed Order and its attachments to the petitioner at the petitioner’s address of

record.
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(d)te) The Department may proceed with the administrative establishment of paternity and
support by either sending the alleged father a Proposed Administrative Paternity and Support
Order, CS-OA20, or referring the proceeding to the Division of Administrative Hearings without
issuing a Proposed Administrative Paternity and Support Order if the Department determines that
an evidentiary hearing is appropriate to determine the respondent’s income. The Department will
calculate the respondent’s support obligation using the child support guidelines in Section 61.30,
F.S. If the respondent does not provide financial information within the time required by
Sections 409.2563(13)(a) and (b), F.S., the Department will impute income as provided by
Section 61.30(2)(b), F.S., or impute income at fulltime minimum wage as provided by Section
409.2563(5)(a), F.S. Calculation of the respondent’s retroactive support obligation is in
accordance with Section 61.30(17), F.S. Retroactive support is addressed in an initial
determination of child support. The Department uses a Proposed Administrative Paternity and
Support Order (http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-15867 +2367), CS-
0X20, effective 09/23 H£20, and incorporated by reference, when a proceeding involves more
than one child and paternity has already been established for one or more of the children. The
Proposed Administrative Paternity and Support Order may include terms for monetary support,
retroactive support, health insurance, and non-covered medical expenses as appropriate. The
Proposed Administrative Paternity and Support Order tells the alleged father that the Department
intends to issue an administrative order establishing paternity and a support obligation for the
child or children listed in the Proposed Administrative Paternity and Support Order. When an
agreed to and signed parenting time plan is provided by the parents, it is enclosed with Proposed
Order. If a signed parenting time plan is not enclosed, the Department will provide a blank Title

IV-D Standard Parenting Time Plan, CS-OA250, with form CS-OX20 except as provided by
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paragraph (6)(a).

(d) through (h) Renumbered (e) through (i) No change.

(15) Final Order Establishing Paternity or Paternity and Child Support.

(a) The Department will render a Final Order of Paternity
(http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-15868 138608), CS-OP50, effective
09/23 1024, or a Final Administrative Paternity and Support Order
(http://www flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-15869 13861), CS-OA40, effective
09/23 021, both forms incorporated by reference, if the alleged father does not ask for a
hearing timely. The Department may use a Final Administrative Paternity and Support Order
(http://www flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-15870 +3862), CS-0X40, effective
09/23 0224, and incorporated by reference, in cases where there is more than one child on the
order and paternity does not need to be established for all of the children. In addition to the Final
Administrative Paternity and Support Order, the Department enters an Income Deduction Order
as part of the Final Administrative Paternity and Support Order. The respondent is responsible
for making the ordered payments to the State Disbursement Unit until the income deduction
begins.

(b) through (e) No change.

(16) through (21) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 409.2557(3)(p), 409.256(17), 409.25633(9) FS. Law Implemented
409.256, 409.2563, 409.25633 FS. History—New 4-5-16, Amended 9-19-17, 1-17-18, 9-17-18, §-

28-19, 11-12-20, 11-21-21, 6-9-22, .

12E-1.039 Request for Services.
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(1) through (3) No change.

(4) Application.

(a) To apply for services, an individual who does not receive temporary cash assistance or
food assistance must submit a signed and complete electronic or paper application. The
Department will obtain information concerning parents and children including: name, address,
date of birth, Social Security Number, employment, health insurance, military service, and other
relevant information necessary to provide child support services.

1. No change.

2. A hardcopy application may be obtained by calling 1(850)488-KIDS (5437) or contacting
a child support local office. Local child support office information is provided on the
Department’s website www.floridarevenue.com.

a. Upon request, the Department will provide an individual who requests services with Forms
CS-ES51 and CS-ES50. Form CS-ES51, Application for Child Support Services, is hereby
incorporated by reference effective 09/23 1224,

(http://www flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-15871 13865). Form CS-ES50,
Application Instructions, is hereby incorporated by reference effective 12/21,

(http://www flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp? No=Ref-13864). The applicant must complete
and submit the CS-ES51 form provided.

b. When an applicant requests services for more than one child, the Department will provide
the applicant a Child Information, Form CS-ES51ACI, for each additional child. Form CS-
ESS51ACI, (http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-15872 13866), is
incorporated herein by reference, effective 09/23 422+, The applicant must complete and submit

the CS-ES51ACI form(s) provided.
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c. When there is more than one alleged father, the Department will provide the applicant a
separate Other Parent Information, Form CS-ES52, for each alleged father. Form CS-ES52,
(http://www flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-13867), is incorporated herein by
reference, effective 12/21. The applicant must complete and submit the CS-ES52 form(s)
provided.

d. When the applicant is applying for services for more than one child with different fathers,
the applicant will be required to submit a separate application for each child and father.

(5) through (6) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 409.2557(3)(h), (i) FS. Law Implemented 409.2567 F'S. History—New 9-

19-17, Amended 8-28-19, 11-12-20, 11-21-21, 6-9-22, .

Substantial rewording of Rule 12E-1.040 follows. See Florida Administrative Code for present
text.
12E-1.040 Intergovernmental Forms.

(1) Federally approved forms.

(a) As the state’s Title IV-D agency under Section 409.2557(1), F.S.. the Department must

use federally approved forms in intergovernmental cases involving child support programs in

other states, foreign countries, and tribes, as required by 45 CFR 303.7(a)(4).

(b) The Department uses the General Testimony form (CS-IS21) to obtain a statement under

penalty of perjury about the information and facts of the case from a person seeking to establish

paternity. support, or paternity and support, or review or modification of a support order in an

intergovernmental case. The Department requests information needed to prepare the General

Testimony form from the petitioning parent. The Department provides the General Testimony
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form to the other government’s child support program. Form CS-IS21.

(http://www .flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-15873). is hereby incorporated by

reference, effective 09/23.

(c) The Department uses the Declaration in Support of Establishing Parentage forms (CS-

1S26 and CS-1S26a) to obtain a paternity affidavit from a person seeking establishment of

paternity or paternity and support in an intergovernmental case. The Department provides Form

CS-IS26 or CS-IS26a to the other government’s child support program. Form CS-IS26 is

system-generated and populated with data previously obtained by the Department from the

petitioning parent or governmental entity where the petitioning parent resides or applies for

services. Form CS-IS26a is blank and includes Instructions for Completing the Declaration in

Support of Establishing Parentage (Form CS-1S261). Form CS-1S26,

(http://www .flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-15874), is hereby incorporated by

reference, effective 09/23. Form CS-1S26a,

(http://www .flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-15875), is hereby incorporated by

reference, effective 09/23. Form CS-1S26i,

(http://www .flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-15876), is hereby incorporated by

reference, effective 09/23.

(2) Establishment of paternity and support or modification to add a child to a support order.

(a) The Department seeks information from the petitioning parent to complete Forms CS-

1S21 and CS-IS26 when paternity or support is needed for a child when the alleged father does

not reside in Florida.

(b) The Department uses the Information Needed to Establish a Support Order in Another

State form (CS-1S72) to obtain information from the petitioning parent. Form CS-IS72.
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(http://www .flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-15877). is hereby incorporated by

reference, effective 09/23.

(c) When requesting establishment of paternity, the Department uses the Declaration in

Support of Establishing Parentage form (CS-IS26a) to obtain information from the petitioning

parent.

(d) Forms CS-IS72 and CS-IS26a are mailed to the petitioning parent for completion. The

petitioning parent has 30 days after the date form CS-IS72 is mailed to complete and return it to

the Department and, if requested by the Department. to complete and return Form CS-1S26a.

(e) If the petitioning parent does not timely return Form CS-IS72. or when requested Form

CS-IS26a, the Department takes the following action:

1. If the petitioning parent receives cash assistance for the child and Form CS-IS26a is not

requested, the Department prepares the General Testimony (CS-1S21) form, signs for the

petitioning parent and requests services from the child support agency in a state with personal

jurisdiction over the responding parent.

2. If the petitioning parent receives cash assistance for the child and Form CS-IS26a is

requested or the petitioning parent does not receive cash assistance for the child, but receives

Medicaid or food assistance, the Department reports noncooperation to the Department of

Children and Families as required by Section 409.2572 F.S. In addition, the Department initiates

case closure, unless there is a support order for another child on the case the Department is

enforcing.

3. If the petitioning parent does not receive public assistance, the Department initiates case

closure, unless there is a support order for another child on the case the Department is enforcing.

4. If a case is closed because the petitioning parent does not complete and return forms
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required under (2)(d), the Department will not re-open the case or provide services until the

required forms are completed and returned to the Department.

(f) The Department prepares the General Testimony form (CS-IS21) using the information

provided by the petitioning parent and mails it to them. When establishment or modification of a

support order is requested, the Department includes Review and Sign Forms Needed to Obtain a

Child Support Order (CS-I1S73) with Form CS-IS21. If paternity is needed and Form CS-IS26a

provided by the petitioning parent is incomplete, contains extraneous information or stray marks,

the Department prepares Form CS-1S26 with the information provided by the petitioning parent

and mails it to them. The petitioning parent has 30 days after the date Form CS-IS73 is mailed to

review, correct, complete. sign and return the forms to the Department. Form CS-1S73,

(http://www .flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-15878), is hereby incorporated by

reference, effective 09/23.

(2) If the petitioning parent does not sign and return the forms within 30 days after the date of

mailing by the Department, the team member signs the forms and forwards them to the other

government’s child support program.

(3) Review of support order in accordance with Rule 12E-1.041. F.A.C.

(a) The Department uses the Information Needed for Support Order Review in Another State

form (CS-IS75) to obtain information from the petitioning parent. Form CS-IS75.

(http://www .flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-15879). is hereby incorporated by

reference, effective 09/23. The petitioning parent has 30 days after the date Form CS-IS75 is

mailed to them to complete and return the form to the Department.

(b) If the petitioning parent does not timely return Form CS-IS75. the Department stops the

review and notifies the petitioning parent by mailing them the Support Order Review Update
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form (CS-POBA) incorporated by reference in Rule 12E-1.041. F.A.C.

(c) When the petitioning parent does not receive public assistance, the Department prepares

the General Testimony form (CS-IS21) using the information provided by the petitioning parent

and mails it to them with the Review and Sign Forms Needed to Review a Child Support Order

form (CS-IS74). The parent has 30 days after the date Form CS-IS74 is mailed to them to

review, correct, complete. sign and return the General Testimony form (CS-IS21) to the

Department. Form CS-IS74. (http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-15880), is

hereby incorporated by reference, effective 09/23.

(d) If the petitioning parent does not return a signed Form CS-IS21 within 30 days after the

date the form is mailed to them, the Department may sign the form for the petitioning parent.

(e) The Department sends Form CS-IS21 to the child support agency in the state with

continuing, exclusive jurisdiction, as determined under Section 88.2051 F.S.. to conduct a review

of the support order and to modify the order, if appropriate.

Rulemaking Authority 409.2557 F'S. Law Implemented 88.3111(2), 88.3071(1)(a), 409.2557,

409.2561 FS. History—New 9-19-17, Amended 6-9-22, 10-26-22, .

12E-1.041 Review for Modification of Support Order.

(1) Initiating a review.

(a) The Department automatically initiates a monthly review of support orders to determine if

modification is appropriate for cases in which the parent due support is receiving cash assistance

from the Department of Children and Families, the support order has not been reviewed or

modified for at least three years, and the Department has a mailing address for both parents, or

caregiver, if applicable.
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(b) A parent or caregiver may request the Department to review a support order to which

they are a party by contacting the Department verbally or in writing. If the request is for one of

the following reasons, the Department takes action to modify the support order, as appropriate,

without conducting a review for modification:

1. A child of the parties has left or been added to the household of the parent due support.

2. There has been a change of custody of a child of the parties.

3. Extending support beyond the age of 18.

(c) The Department begins a review by mailing the applicable forms to both parents when the

review is initiated under (1)(a) or to the parent who requests a review under (1)(b).

1. If the support order under review is an administrative support order issued by the

Department, the forms consist of the Declaration of Change in Circumstances (CS-POBB), the

Financial Affidavit (CS-OA11). and the Parent Information Form (CS-OA12). If the case is

eligible for a parenting time plan under Rule 12E-1.030. the Title IV-D Standard Parenting Time

Plan (CS-OA250) is included. Form CS-POBB,

(http://www .flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-15882). is hereby incorporated by

reference, effective 09/23. Forms CS-OA11 and CS-OA12 are incorporated in Rule 12E-1.036,

F.A.C.

2. If the support order under review is not an administrative support order issued by the

Department, the forms consist of the Declaration of Change in Circumstances (CS-POBB) and

the Family Law Financial Affidavit (Short Form) (CS-PO31). Form CS-PO31 is incorporated by

reference in Rule 12E-1.036. F.A.C.

3. A caregiver is mailed Forms CS-POBB and CS-OA 12 if the support order under review is

an administrative support order issued by the Department and Form CS-POBB if the support
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order under review is not an administrative support order issued by the Department.

(d) When the review is initiated under (1)(a), the parents are requested to complete and

return the forms within 20 days after the date that appears on Form CS-POBB. When the 20-day

period expires, the Department proceeds with the review.

(e) When a review is initiated under (1)(b), the parent who requests the review must

complete and return the forms within the time period specified in Form CS-POBB. If the forms

are not completed and returned timely, the review is ended, and the requesting party is notified

by the Support Order Review Update form (CS-POBA). Form CS-POBA.,

(http://www .flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-15883), is hereby incorporated by

reference, effective 09/23. If the requesting party returns the completed forms timely, the

Department mails the applicable forms to the nonrequesting party for completion and return. If

the forms mailed to the nonrequesting party are returned to the Department undelivered, the

Department resends the forms to the party’s current address, if known. If the party’s current

address is not known, the Department terminates the proceeding and notifies the requesting

party by issuing Form CS-POBA that the review cannot be completed.

(f) The Department does not initiate or terminates a review when the parent who owes

support is incarcerated. The Department notifies the parties that a review cannot be conducted by

mailing the parties the Unable to Conduct Support Order Review Parent Who Owes Support in

Jail form (CS-POBK). Form CS-POBK,

(http://www .flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-15884). is hereby incorporated by

reference, effective 09/23.

(2) When the Department does not initiate or terminates a review and the parent who owes

support is not incarcerated, the Department notifies the parties by issuing Form CS-POBA.
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(2) Conducting the review.

(a) The requesting party must provide documentation showing a permanent, involuntary

change of circumstance, which may include:

1. A change in either parent’s income. If the income of the parent who is ordered to pay

support increases, the Department does not need to prove that the change is involuntary to

proceed with support order modification.

2. A parent begins receiving Social Security Disability Income.

3. A parent or child becomes permanently disabled.

4. A change in a parent’s or child’s medical condition results in a reduced ability to pay

support or an increased need for support.

5. An increased need for support.

(b) The Department uses the child support guidelines in Section 61.30. F.S.. to calculate the

amount of child support owed based on information provided by the parties and other relevant

information obtained by the Department, such as state wage records obtained from the

Department of Economic Opportunity and income information provided by a parent’s emplovyer

or other payor of income.

(c) The Department begins a proceeding to modify a support order when:

1. It has been three years or more since the most recent support order review under Section

409.2564(11), F.S.. or since the support order was entered or last modified; the child support

amount calculated during the review varies from the child support amount in the support order

by at least 10 percent or a minimum of $25.00 per month; and there is a permanent, involuntary

change in circumstances.

2. It has been less than three vears since the order was entered, modified, or reviewed under
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Section 409.2564(11), F.S.: the child support amount calculated during the review varies from

the child support amount in the support order by at least 15 percent or $50.00 per month; and

there is a permanent, involuntary change in circumstances.

(d) The Department notifies the parents of the results of a completed support order review.

1. When a support order review indicates an administrative support order should be modified,

the Department proceeds in accordance with Rule 12E-1.030(14).

2. When a support order review indicates a judicial support order should be modified, the

Department mails both parties the Results of Support Order Review form (CS-POBC). Form CS-

POBC, (http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-15885), is hereby incorporated

by reference, effective 09/23.

3. When an administrative support order issued by the Department is reviewed and the

review indicates there is not a substantial, permanent, or involuntary change in circumstances,

the Department concludes the review by mailing the parties Form CS-POBC. When a support

order review indicates the Department is unable to proceed with support order modification for

reasons other than those stated in Form CS-POBC, the Department concludes the review by

mailing the parties the Results of Support Order Review form (CS-POBCa). Form CS-POBCa,

(http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-15886), is hereby incorporated by

reference, effective 09/23.

(3) Notice of right to request support order review and modification.

(a) If the mailing address of both parties is known, the Department mails the parties a Your

Right to a Support Order Review form (CS-POBJ) at least once every three years in accordance

with Section 409.2546(11), F.S. Form CS-POBJ,

(http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-15887), is hereby incorporated by
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reference, effective 09/23.

(b) The Department mails both parties the Right to Support Order Review Due to

Incarceration form (CS-POBI) within 15 days after receiving information that the parent who

owes support is incarcerated and will be incarcerated for at least 180 days. Form CS-POBI,

(http://www .flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-15888). is hereby incorporated by

reference, effective 09/23.

Rulemaking Authority 61.13(1)(b)7., 61.14(1)(d), 409.2557(3)(p). 409.2563(7)(e), 409.2563(16),

409.25633(9) FS. Law Implemented 409.2563, 409.25633 FS. History—New

12E-1.042 Income Withholding. In accordance with Section 61.1301(1)(a)l., F.S., the

notice used by the Department to implement income deduction in Title IV-D cases is the Income

Withholding for Support form (CS-EF05/06). Form CS-EF05/06,

(http://www .flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-15881), is hereby incorporated by

reference, effective 09/23. The notice may be mailed to a payor of income or delivered

electronically if the payor consents to electronic notification.

Rulemaking Authority 409.2557(3), F'S. Law Implemented 61.1301(1)(a)l. FS. History—

New .
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I hereby certify pursuant to Rule 1-1.013, Florida Administrative Code, that materials incorporated by reference in

CERTIFICATION OF MATERIALS INCORPORATED

BY REFERENCE IN RULES FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE

Rules 12E-1.012, 12E-1.023, 12E-1.027, 12E-1.028, 12E-1.029, 12E-1.030, 12E-1.036, 12E-1.039, 12E-1.040, 12E-

1.041 and 12E-1.042have been:

[X] (1) Filed through the Department of State’s e-rulemaking website at www.flrules.org.

[ 1(2) That because there would be a violation of federal copyright laws if the submitting agency filed the

incorporated materials as described in option (1) above, a true and complete copy of the incorporated materials has

been provided to the Department of State as outlined in paragraph 1-1.013(5)(c), F.A.C. Copies of the incorporated

materials below may be obtained at the agency by [include address(es)/location(s)].

List form number(s) and form title(s), or title of document(s) below:

Rule 12E-1.012, F.A.C.

Form Number

Form Title

CS-EF32

Notice of Intent to Report to Consumer Reporting Agencies

Rule 12E-1.023, F.A.C.

Form Number

Form Title

CS-EF55

Notice of Intent to Suspend Driver License and Motor Vehicle Registration(s)

Rule 12E-1.027, F.A.C.

Form Number

Form Title

CS-EF91

Payment Agreement for Past-Due Support

Rule 12E-1.028, F.A.C.

Form Number

Form Title

TSP-CS-1

Thrift Savings Plan Income Withholding Order For State Agencies, 12/2022

Rule 12E-1.029, F.A.C.

Form Number

Form Title

CS-EF134
N/A
N/A

Adopt a new Agreement for Financial Institution Data Matching

45 C.F.R. § 303.21 (10-1-21)

Multistate Financial Institution Data Match Specifications Handbook, Version 3.0, December 30,
2020.



Rule 12E-1.030, F.A.C.

Form Number

Form Title

CS-OA120R
CS-OA140R
CS-OA160
CS-OA178
CS-OA179
CS-OA180

Proposed Order to Modify Administrative Support Order

Final Modified Administrative Support Order

Notice of Intent to Terminate Support, Determine Arrears and Establish Payment on Arrears
Final Order Terminating Support, Determining Arrears and Establishing Payment on Arrears
Request to Terminate Support

Response to Request to Terminate Support

Rule 12E-1.036, F.A.C.

Form Number

Form Title

CS-OA20
CS-OA40
CS-OP02
CS-OPO05
CS-OP30
CS-OP50
CS-0X20
CS-0X40

Proposed Administrative Paternity and Support Order
Final Administrative Paternity and Support Order
Order to Appear for Genetic Testing

Requirement to Provide Sample for Genetic Testing
Proposed Order of Paternity

Final Order of Paternity

Proposed Administrative Paternity and Support Order
Final Administrative Paternity and Support Order

Rule 12E-1.039, F.A.C.

Form Number

Form Title

CS-ES51
CS-ES51ACI

Application for Child Support Services

Child Information

Rule 12E-1.040, F.A.C.

Form Number

Form Title

CS-1S21

CS-1S26

CS-1S26a

CS-1S261

CS-1S72

CS-IS73

CS-1S74

CS-IS75

General Testimony

Declaration in Support of Establishing Parentage

Declaration in Support of Establishing Parentage

Instructions for Completing the Declaration in Support of Establishing Parentage
Information Needed to Establish a Support Order in Another State

Review and Sign Forms Needed to Obtain a Child Support Order

Review and Sign Forms Needed to Review a Child Support Order

Information Needed for Support Order Review in Another State

2



Rule 12E-1.041, F.A.C.

Form Number Form Title

CS-POBB Declaration of Change in Circumstances

CS-POBA Support Order Review Update

CS-POBK Unable to Conduct Support Order Review Parent Who Owes Support in Jail
CS-POBC Results of Support Order Review

CS-POBCa Results of Support Order Review
CS-POBJ Your Right to a Support Order Review

CS-POBI Right to Support Order Review Due to Incarceration

Rule 12E-1.042, F.A.C.

Form Number Form Title

CS-EF05/06 Income Withholding for Support

Under the provisions of Section 120.54(3)(e)6., F.S., the attached material(s) take effect 20 days from the date filed with
the Department of State, or a later date as specified in the rule.

Signa‘m{e, Person Authoriz¥d to,Certify Rules

Deputy Executive Director
Title




Bobby York

From: FL-Rules@dos.state.fl.us

Sent: Thursday, August 24, 2023 8:40 AM

To: Bobby York

Cc: flrules@dos.state.fl.us

Subject: 12E-1.012 Reference Material for Rule Adoption Approved
Dear yorkb:

The reference material for rule adoption you submitted has been approved by the Administrative Code and Register
Staff.

The approved material is available in the Review/Modify Agency Reference Material list (Agency Main Menu page).
Rule Number: 12E-1.012

Reference Number: Ref-15850; Reference Name: Notice of Intent to Report to Consumer Reporting Agencies (CS-EF32)

Click here to log in.

Administrative Code and Register Staff
Florida Department of State



Bobby York

From: FL-Rules@dos.state.fl.us

Sent: Thursday, August 24, 2023 8:40 AM

To: Bobby York

Cc: flrules@dos.state.fl.us

Subject: 12E-1.023 Reference Material for Rule Adoption Approved
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

Rule Number: 12E-1.023
Reference Number: Ref-15851; Reference Name: Notice of Intent to Suspend Driver License and Motor Vehicle

Registration(s) (CS-EF55)

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

Subject: 12E-1.027 Reference Material for Rule Adoption Approved
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
Rule Number: 12E-1.027

Reference Number: Ref-15852; Reference Name: Payment Agreement for Past-Due Support (CS-EF91)

Click here to log in.

Administrative Code and Register Staff
Fiorida Department of State



Bobby York

From: FL-Rules@dos.state.fl.us

Sent: Thursday, August 24, 2023 8:40 AM

To: Bobby York

Cc: flrules@dos.state.fl.us

Subject: 12E-1.028 Reference Material for Rule Adoption Approved
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
Rule Number: 12E-1.028

Reference Number: Ref-15853; Reference Name: Thrift Savings Plan Income Withholding Order For State Agencies,
12/2022 (TSP-CS-1)

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

Subject: 12E-1.029 Reference Material for Rule Adoption Approved
Dear yorkb:

The reference material for rule adoption you submitted has been approved by the Administrative Code and Register
Staff.

The approved material is available in the Review/Modify Agency Reference Material list {Agency Main Menu page).
Rule Number: 12E-1.029

Reference Number: Ref-15854; Reference Name: Adopt a new Agreement for Financial Institution Data Matching (Cs-
EF134)

Reference Number: Ref-15855; Reference Name: CFR-2021-title45-vol3-sec303-21

Reference Number: Ref-15856; Reference Name: MSFIDM Specifications Handbook

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

Subject: 12E-1.030 Reference Material for Rule Adoption Approved
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

Rule Number: 12E-1.030

Reference Number: Ref-15857; Reference Name:
Reference Number: Ref-15858; Reference Name:
Reference Number: Ref-15859; Reference Name:

Establish Payment on Arrears {CS-OA160)

Reference Number: Ref-15860; Reference Name:

Payment on Arrears (CS-OA178)

Reference Number: Ref-15861; Reference Name:
Reference Number: Ref-15862; Reference Name:

Click here to log in.

Administrative Code and Register Staff
Florida Department of State

Proposed Order to Modify Administrative Support Order (CS-OA120R)
Final Modified Administrative Support Order (CS-OA140R)
Notice of Intent to Terminate Support, Determine Arrears and

Final Order Terminating Support, Determining Arrears and Establishing

Request to Terminate Support (CS-0A179)
Response to Request to Terminate Support (CS-OA180)



Bobby York

From:
Sent:
To:

Cc:
Subject:

Dear yorkb:

FL-Rules@dos.state.fl.us
Thursday, August 24, 2023 8:42 AM

Bobby York

flrules@dos.state.fl.us
12E-1.036 Reference Material for Rule Adoption Approved

The reference material for rule adoption you submitted has been approved by the Administrative Code and Register

Staff.

The approved material is available in the Review/Modify Agency Reference Material list (Agency Main Menu page).
Rule Number: 12E-1.036

Reference Number:
Reference Number:
Reference Number:
Reference Number:
Reference Number:
Reference Number:
Reference Number:
Reference Number:

Click here to log in.

Ref-15863; Reference Name:
Ref-15864; Reference Name:
Ref-15865; Reference Name:
Ref-15866; Reference Name:
Ref-15867; Reference Name:
Ref-15868; Reference Name:
Ref-15869; Reference Name:
Ref-15870; Reference Name:

Administrative Code and Register Staff
Florida Department of State

Requirement to Provide Sample for Genetic Testing (CS-OP0O5)
Order to Appear for Genetic Testing (CS-OP02)

Proposed Order of Paternity (CS-OP30)

Proposed Administrative Paternity and Support Order (CS-OA20)
Proposed Administrative Paternity and Support Order (CS-OX20)
Final Order of Paternity (CS-OP50)

Final Administrative Paternity and Support Order (CS-OA40)
Final Administrative Paternity and Support Order (CS-OX40)



Bobby York

From: FL-Rules@dos.state.fl.us

Sent: Thursday, August 24, 2023 8:42 AM

To: Bobby York

Cc: flrules@dos.state.fl.us

Subject: 12E-1.039 Reference Material for Rule Adoption Approved
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
Rule Number: 12E-1.039

Reference Number: Ref-15871; Reference Name: Application for Child Support Services (CS-ES51)

Reference Number: Ref-15872; Reference Name: Child Information (CS-ES51ACI)

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

12E-1.040 Reference Material for Rule Adoption Approved

The reference material for rule adoption you submitted has been approved by the Administrative Code and Register

Staff.

The approved material is available in the Review/Modify Agency Reference Material list (Agency Main Menu page).

Rule Number: 12E-1.040

Reference Number: Ref-15873; Reference Name: General Testimony (CS-1S21)

Reference Number: Ref-15874; Reference Name: Declaration in Support of Establishing Parentage (CS-1S26)

Reference Number: Ref-15875; Reference Name: Declaration in Support of Establishing Parentage (CS-1S26a)
Reference Number: Ref-15876; Reference Name: Instructions for Completing the Declaration in Support of Establishing

Parentage (CS-1S261)

Reference Number: Ref-15877; Reference Name: Information Needed to Establish a Support Order in Another State (CS-

1572)

Reference Number: Ref-15878; Reference Name: Review and Sign Forms Needed to Obtain a Child Support Order (CS-

1573)

Reference Number: Ref-15879; Reference Name: Information Needed for Support Order Review in Another State (CS-

IS75)

Reference Number: Ref-15880; Reference Name: Review and Sign Forms Needed to Review a Child Support Order (CS-

IS74)

Click here to log in.

Administrative Code and Register Staff

Florida Department of State



Bobby York

From: FL-Rules@dos.state.fl.us

Sent: Thursday, August 24, 2023 8:43 AM

To: Bobby York

Cc: flrules@dos.state.fl.us

Subject: 12E-1.041 Reference Material for Rule Adoption Approved
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
Rule Number: 12E-1.041

Reference Number: Ref-15882; Reference Name: Declaration of Change in Circumstances {CS-POBB)

Reference Number: Ref-15883; Reference Name: Support Order Review Update (CS-POBA)

Reference Number: Ref-15884; Reference Name: Unable to Conduct Support Order Review Parent Who Owes Support in
Jail (CS-POBK)

Reference Number: Ref-15885; Reference Name: Results of Support Order Review (CS-POBC)

Reference Number: Ref-15886; Reference Name: Results of Support Order Review (CS-POBCa)

Reference Number: Ref-15887; Reference Name: Your Right to a Support Order Review (CS-POBJ)

Reference Number: Ref-15888; Reference Name: Right to Support Order Review Due to Incarceration (CS-POBI)

Click here to log in.

Administrative Code and Register Staff
Florida Department of State



Bobby York

From: FL-Rules@dos.state.fl.us

Sent: Thursday, August 24, 2023 8:42 AM

To: Bobby York

Cc: flrules@dos.state fl.us

Subject: 12E-1.042 Reference Material for Rule Adoption Approved
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
Rule Number: 12E-1.042

Reference Number: Ref-15881; Reference Name: Income Withholding for Support (CS-EF05/06)

Click here to log in.

Administrative Code and Register Staff
Florida Department of State
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